
SRWTP Chiller Replacement Project 

RFP 9091 Questions 

1. There is a requirement for the design team to carry the hazardous material identification and 
remediation plan.  This is a task that is typically excluded from our proposals for insurance 
reasons and is carried by the owner.  Will SRCSD consider taking on this scope?  Please note 
that we have suspended further development of our proposal until we receive a response as 
we will, unfortunately, not be able to provide a proposal should SRCSD require the design 
team to carry this scope.  Accordingly, it would be appreciated if we could receive an 8 
business days extension on the proposal if SRCSD does agree to remove the hazardous 
material scope from the RFP. 

 
This effort involves identifying the tests to perform and the sample locations to determine what 
hazardous materials are present.  The actual work to sample is done by companies who have the 
certifications and labs will perform the analytical work.  The effort is simply to assist in 
establishing a sampling program and present the findings on the design so the contractor 
accounts for this.   
 
Another possibility is contracting with a subconsultant/subcontractor to identify the 
constituents to sample and test.  Sacramento County also has certified staff who can sample the 
locations and send them to the lab.  Again, the effort is to assist the District identify the 
materials to test for and locations so the information is included in the construction contract 
documents.   
 
District is flexible on how this task gets done.  Designers are to indicate in the proposal how this 
effort can be performed.  
 

2. Within the RFP Page 5 of 17, under Task 1.1, there is a task listed for hazmat identification, a 
removal plan, and cost estimates for such abatement.  In our experience hazmat 
identification, abatement plans, and the abatement is handled by the owner and occurs prior 
to and outside the scope of a typical engineering/design project; such that the areas of work 
would have an existing hazmat report, and be cleaned and cleared of hazmat prior to 
commencement if any construction demolition and/or new work.  The main reason simply 
due to most consulting mechanical engineering firms (who provide chiller replacement and 
central plant engineering services on a daily basis) cannot attain and do not carry liability 
insurance for ANY hazmat related work.   
 
So our question is meant simply to double check the appropriateness for this scope to include 
hazmat identification. If it is to remain as an indicated scope item for the successful 
engineering firm, so be it. We just wanted to confirm or provide an opportunity for some 
alternate direction. 
 
This question is essentially the same as #1.  The District did not envision having a separate 
contract to handle any hazardous materials present although remains flexible on how to 
perform the task. 
 
 



3. RFP Due Date Extension 
 

The District will prepare an Addendum and extend the deadline from February 10th to February 
17th. 
 

4. While reviewing the RFP, refrigeration calculations were not found as part of the BCE.  Have 
these calculations been performed to ascertain whether a refrigeration room must be built 
around the chillers, or should the proposal assume that the building containing the refrigerant 
chillers has enough volume to avoid triggering the refrigeration room code? 
 
The District does not have any additional information on the topic.  The pre-design effort will 
need to explore all project requirements and how to address them. 
 

5. Absorption chillers use lithium bromide/ water as the refrigerant, which exempts it from 
many chiller requirements of the code.  We were unable to find any analysis of the 
implications of switching from a Libr/water mixture to a refrigerant that is used in electric 
chillers.  Is there a document that is available that has included that analysis?  
 
The District does not have any additional information on the topic.  The pre-design effort will 
need to explore all project requirements and how to address them. 
 

6. For Lifecycle Cost Analysis, will SRCSD share historical maintenance costs for our use in the 
model?  The design team can develop capital cost information. 
 
It is not clear why historical costs need to be revisited since the BCE (Attachment H) is complete 
and approved.  However, the District will share historical maintenance information if required.  
 

7. The RFP requires scheduling and sequencing to be developed.  While the team can provide a 
definitive design schedule, the construction schedule would be conceptual for durations and 
sequencing.  Final construction scheduling would be considered by the design team to be 
provided by the contractor as it is means and methods, but would be expected to follow the 
intent of the conceptual schedule.  
 
The interpretation of the schedule is correct.  The designer prepares a design schedule and 
provides a conceptual construction schedule.  When the contractor is on-board, the 
construction schedule belongs to the contractor. 
 

8. Is SRCSD willing to modify the contract to specifically exclude consequential damages? 
 
The last section of the RFP (pg. 14 of 17) is the area to indicate modifications to the contract and 
will need to be reviewed by District Counsel if the firm with the comment is selected. 
 



9. Will SRCSD be amenable to sharing historical permit costs for use by the teams cost 
consultant? 
 
The District is not aware of specific permits that are paid by the designer.  The Elk Grove Fire 
Department will review the project design when complete and the District pays for the review 
costs.  Keep in mind any questions or concerns can be discussed further during the remaining 
selection and negotiations stages. 
 

10. Are existing MEP and architectural plans available in CAD? 
 

The original plant construction drawings are not available in CAD since they date back to the 
early and mid 1970s.  The PDFs provided, either in hard copy or electronic, reflect the type of 
drawings available in AutoCAD.  The system as it exists today is a compilation of various large 
construction projects and there should not be an expectation that the District has every 
historical construction drawing and detail available in CAD.  The designer should be prepared to 
create design drawings and details for the new system as required including exploration time in 
the field since the drawings are the best we have but are not 100% correct. 
 
 

11. May we use smaller than 12-point font in graphics and tables, provided the content is legible?  
 
Per section 7 (pg. 9 of 17) of the RFP, the font shall not be smaller than 12-point. 
 
 

12. Do you anticipate that interviews will be in-person or virtual? 
 

The District suggests the PM and design lead plan to attend in person but flexibility for a virtual 
interview exists. 
 

 
13. The Brown and Caldwell business case estimate includes soft costs in their analysis of Capital 

Costs (Attachment H). The majority of the requested cost estimates in the RFP Tasks 
specifically state “estimated construction cost”, which we interpret to mean hard costs only 
and not soft costs. Please confirm our interpretation is correct, that soft costs should be 
excluded from all cost estimates, or clarify which requested cost estimates should also include 
soft costs. 

 
B&C included all the project costs (soft and hard) because the District needed to plan the overall 
project - design and construction costs.  Selection of the design firm and negotiation of the 
design contract establishes the consultant design costs.  The remaining project costs are the 
construction costs and those will be refined as the design progresses. 


